1949

## Orson Lewis dba Lewis Bros. Stages v. State Tax Commission : Brief of Plaintiff

Utah Supreme Court

### STATEMENT OF THE CASE

As a result of an audit of the accounts of Lewis Bros. Stages by the auditing division of the State Tax Commission, a sales tax deficiency assessment was levied against Orson Lewis, doing business as Lewis Bros. Stages, under date of February 16, 1949 (R. 2). This assessment is based upon the plaintiff's failure to collect and pay a sales tax upon fares collected for the transportation of passengers to and from Salt Lake City and Kearns, Utah (R. 4). The plaintiff objected to this assessment on the grounds that Title 80, Chapter 15, Section 4, Utah Code Annotated, 1943, exempts "street railway fares" from the sales tax and that said exemption applied to the fares received by the plaintiff in his operation

from Salt Lake City to Kearns, Utah, and intermediate points along said route (R. 17). The plaintiff further objected to the assessment upon the grounds that the Tax Commission had construed said exemption to apply to operations analogous to the Kearns operation, and that the Tax Commission had told the plaintiff that his operation would also be construed as being exempted (R. 17-19).

After the above objections were made and on March 2, 1949, a hearing was granted before the Tax Commission (R. 22). On March 5, 1949, the Commission rendered its decision sustaining the deficiency assessment previously levied (R. 68-70). A writ of certiorari was issued in response to a petition filed March 11, 1949 (R. 73). The State Tax Commission made its return under the writ on March 30, 1949 (R. 75).

## STATEMENT OF FACTS

### *A. "Instigation of the service."*

During the months of July and August, 1942 Mr. Orson Lewis, doing business as Lewis Bros. Stages, was contacted by Donald Hacking, a member of the Public Service Commission, who requested that Mr. Lewis consider assuming the responsibility of furnishing transportation to and from Kearns, Utah (R. 33, 56). At that time Mr. Lewis stated that he felt he would be able to enter into such an undertaking and consequently made preparations to do so (R. 56). Shortly before commencing these operations army personnel contacted Mr. Lewis concerning the fare which would be charged on the run to and from Kearns (R. 57). Mr. Lewis informed them of

the proposed fare and also informed them that a 2% sales tax would be charged. Until this time Lewis Bros. Stages had been operating intrastate operations upon which he had always charged a sales tax (R. 57). The army personnel objected to this charge (R. 57). However, Mr. Lewis informed them that they would have to settle the matter with the Tax Commission (R. 58). On the following day the army personnel informed Mr. Lewis that a sales tax was not charged by the Salt Lake City Lines or Airway Motor Coach Lines, Inc., and that since the Kearns operation would be similar and analogous to the above mentioned operations a sales tax should not be included in the fare (R. 58). The only concern Mr. Lewis had in the charging of the sales tax was one of making sure that such a tax would not be levied on the operations unless he would be able to include the tax in the fare (R. 58). With this in mind, he contacted Mr. Shields, his attorney, who in turn called the Tax Commission and was informed that there would be no tax liability incurred in the furnishing of transportation to and from Kearns (R. 50, 59).

#### *B. Nature of the operations.*

The operations to and from Kearns consisted of picking up military and civilian personnel at the depot of Lewis Bros. Stages and all along the route going to Kearns, and the letting off of passengers at the Kalunite plant at 33rd South, Taylorsville, and at Kearns. On the return trip passengers were picked up at Kearns, Taylorsville, and the Kalunite plant at 33rd South, and the passengers were let off all along the route back to Salt Lake City (R. 59-60). Seventy per cent

(70%) of all the passengers were picked up at places other than at the depot and paid fares upon the buses (R. 61), although there were no customarily fare boxes on the buses (R. 60). The volume of passengers being hauled amounted to as high as 13,000 per day and as high as 2,000 per hour during rush hours (R. 60-61). Frequent stops were made, letting passengers off at any place on the return trip to Salt Lake City, and frequent stops were made to pick up passengers all along the route to Kearns (R. 60, 62). No tax was in fact charged the passengers (R. 61), and the operation to Kearns was discontinued when Kearns was deactivated (R. 37).

### *C. Operating authority.*

The operation was created to meet wartime demands upon local transportation services and was commenced by direction of the Public Service Commission of Utah (R. 33) without a hearing and before the issuing of a certificate of convenience and necessity (R. 59-62). The certificate actually issued authorized the hauling of passengers between Salt Lake City and Kearns along a designated route. However, Lewis Bros. Stages had oral authority to pick up and let off at Taylorsville (R. 35, 42) and at the Kalunite plant (R. 40), and may have been authorized "to pick up and discharge anywhere along the route where no other services were available" (R. 39).

The present standard applied by the Commission in determining if the exemption should apply is shown by Exhibit A, which is as follows:

### *Distinguishing Features of Street Railway*

1. Street Railway is intended for local convenience to facilitate transportation of persons from point to point within municipality or suburban district.
2. Sale of tickets and passes on cars, and not from terminals.
3. Use of Fare Boxes.
4. Frequency of stops to pick up and deposit passengers along streets of city and suburban areas.
5. Should operate under permit or franchise from city or municipal corporation.

NOTE: In exempting street railway fares from "*Sales Tax*" the legislature undoubtedly had in mind avoiding the inconvenience and loss of time involved in making change in tokens and pennies on the bus or street car.

I am of the opinion that for sales tax purposes the above listed distinguishing features of a street railway constitute a sound basis for determining what fares are subject to the tax. On this basis, which I believe is also in substantial conformity to the present printed regulation on the matter involved, I favor holding quite closely to our present policy. In other words, Inter-urban Railway fares should continue to be held taxable and fares of buses operated entirely within cities or as part of an old established street railway system as in S. L. City, should continue to be held not subject to the tax.

Between these two cases these are borderline cases,



the status of which might well be subjected to review and possible re-classification—Such cases as Airway Motor Lines. Heber Bennion, Jr. (R. 21).

### PLAINTIFF'S CASE

The plaintiff contends that the major issue in this case is that of construing Title 80, Chapter 15, Section 4, Utah Code Annotated, 1943, in an endeavor to determine the legislative intent in granting the street railway exemption. Incidental and subordinate to this main issue is the one of determining if the present requirements insisted upon by the Commission concerning this exemption are valid ones, and if the Commission did not in fact, at the instigation of the Kearns operation, construe said operation along with that of the Airway Motor Coach Lines, Inc., as being within the designated exemption.

### STATEMENT OF ERRORS RELIED ON

Plaintiff relies upon the following propositions as constituting error in the decision of the State Tax Commission.

I. The exemption created by the Legislature was intended to cover situations such as the Kearns operation.

II. The exemption has previously been liberally construed by the Utah Supreme Court and the Utah State Tax Commission.

III. The Kearns operation complies with the valid tests now being applied by the State Tax Commission, as outlined in Exhibit A.

## I.

THE EXEMPTION CREATED BY THE LEGISLATURE WAS INTENDED TO COVER SITUATIONS SUCH AS THE KEARNS OPERATION.

The first sales tax law, Chapter 63, Laws of Utah, 1933, by Section 4, taxed all services rendered by any utility of the state. At the second special session of the Legislature of 1933 the section was amended by adding the following:

“ \* \* \* provided that said tax shall not apply to intrastate movements of freight and express or to street railway fares.”

The Utah Supreme Court in *Utah Light & Traction Co. v. State Tax Commission of Utah*, 92 Utah 404, 68 P. 2d 759, 760, has this to say upon construing the amendment:

“In construing the language of the amendment, it is for us to first determine the intent of the Legislature when it ‘excepted street railway fares’ from the payment of the sales tax. For its meaning, we must look not alone to the *letter* of the statute, but to the *intent* of the legislature and the *purposes* of the act.” (Italics added).

The Tax Commission in Exhibit A recognizes, as does the case just quoted, that the main determination is one of ascertaining legislative intent, and in Exhibit A it states what the Commission believes was the intent of the legislature and the purpose of the exemption. Its statement is as follows:

"NOTE: In exempting street railway fares from 'Sales Tax' the legislature undoubtedly had in mind avoiding the inconvenience and loss of time involved in making change in takens and pennies on the bus or street car." (R. 21).

There can be no dispute but what the Tax Commission is right in its statement of the legislative intent. However, it would appear that the Commission lost sight of this controlling factor in its current reconsideration of the Kearns operation. Can it be said that the payment of 5 and 8 mills and making change therefor to 13,000 soldiers in one day and 2,000 soldiers in one hour is any less burdensome than would be similar transactions upon the buses of the city lines? We think not. A more difficult and burdensome task with the resultant slow-down in the transportation system would be difficult to imagine. In fact, it would probably have been more difficult than on the city lines since the plaintiff was unable to secure fare boxes into which the fares could be paid. *Actually, the Kearns operation was only an integral part of an emergency street transportation system in and about Salt Lake City.*

As in most cases of statutory construction, the matter ultimately becomes a question of degree. On the one hand, there is no dispute that the Salt Lake City Lines were intended by the legislature to be exempt. On the other hand, intrastate operations between a fixed termini wherein all or substantially all of the passengers were picked up and discharged at the bus terminals were not intended to be exempted or defined as street railways. In the later case, the tickets and payment

of sales tax could be handled at the depot prior to departure time. The plaintiff does not question the latter case, since prior to any knowledge of any street railway exemption he collected and paid and still pays a sales tax on fares received for transporting passengers from Salt Lake City on one hand to Tooele, Park City, and Wendover on the other. *Concerning the Kearns operation, however, it must be recognized that it was only an extension of a street transportation service during a war emergency which the Traction Co. lacked facilities to make.* As is more specifically discussed later, Kearns is definitely within the suburban area of Salt Lake City. Concerning the payment and collection of fares, the evidence is uncontroverted to the effect that 70 per cent of all fares were collected on the buses. Actually, not all fares for transportation on the Salt Lake City Lines are purchased on the buses. Tokens, 13 for a dollar, 50 school tickets for two dollars, and weekly passes can be procured at various sales stands within the city. The distinction between the service offered by the Salt Lake City Lines and the Kearns operation is slight, indeed; far too slight to justify a discriminatory construction of the exemption. In the Utah Light & Traction Co. case, *supra*, at page 407, the court states:

“If there is to be a classification, it, to be valid, must rest upon ‘some ground of difference having a fair and substantial relation to the object of the legislation, so that all persons similarly circumstanced shall be treated alike.’ ” (Citation of authorities).

There is nothing in the statute from which it can be inferred that there was an intention to discriminate between

one group of passengers' who rode an independent bus system during a war emergency from those who were served by the normal city bus system whose facilities could not meet the additional demand.

Realizing that the main issue is one of determining legislative intent, can it be said that the legislature, if confronted with this case, would say that such a discriminatory distinction should be drawn, thus requiring the soldiers of Camp Kearns to pay a sales tax? Looking not at the letter of the statute, but rather at the intent of the legislature, as the Supreme Court says we must, and to the purposes of the act which is conceded to be the alleviation of the burden of collecting the tax on buses, it cannot be seriously contended that the Kearns operation does come within the exemption.

## II.

THE EXEMPTION HAS PREVIOUSLY BEEN LIBERALLY CONSTRUED BY THE UTAH SUPREME COURT AND THE UTAH STATE TAX COMMISSION.

In 1936 the Supreme Court in the case of *Utah Rapid Transit Company v. Ogden City*, 89 Utah 546, 58 P.2d 1, restrictively construed the term "street railway" to the extent that it held that the power to operate a street railway did not grant the power to operate a motor bus transportation system. As a result of this decision the Tax Commission concluded that it was required to construe the exemption of street railway fares from the sales tax as limited strictly to fares

from street cars, to the exclusion of fares paid on trolley coaches and motor buses. The Traction Co. objected to this construction, and in the case of *Utah Light & Traction Co. v. State Tax Commission of Utah*, supra, the Supreme Court held that there was no substantial basis for such a restrictive construction insofar as the sales tax exemption was concerned, and also held that the exemption should likewise apply to fares collected on the motor buses. The Traction case on its facts is admittedly a stronger case than the one now before the court in that it involved an old street railway company which was using substituted modern equipment. However, the Tax Commission in its application has not limited the exemption to the factual situation of that case. The exemption has been construed to apply to the operations of the Geneva Transportation Company, operating in and about Provo, and the Ogden Transportation system, both of which it is suggested cannot qualify as extensions of an old railway system. The Kearns run, on the other hand, was in fact just an *extension*, by an independant carrier, of street transportation in the Salt Lake City metropolitan area during a war emergency.

The Tax Commission has further adopted a liberal attitude in construing this exemption as is evidenced by the testimony of two former members of the State Tax Commission. Mr. Gibson made this statement concerning the attitude of the Commission:

“The statute—I cannot remember the wording of it, but the general substance is that any operation of a street railway system would be exempt from sales tax, and our general problem was not to technically

interpret the word 'street railway system,' but interpret that as the meaning of a method of operation, and wherever we found an operation that conformed to the method of operation of a street railway system that we didn't think was prohibited by specific provision of law—in other words, if we could construe them to be operating as a street railway system, they were as such exempt from the tax." (R. 27).

Commissioner Bennion was even more specific concerning the attitude of the Tax Commission. He made this statement:

"It seems to me that in some cases there was not much question as to whether a tax was exempt, or whether it should apply, but there were other cases where it was somewhat difficult to determine. My impression is that the position that we took at the time was that we were in a war emergency, that operations generally weren't normal, that conditions had arisen which were not contemplated by the Legislature when it enacted the Sales Tax Act, and therefore that situations arose in which it might be difficult to determine the intent of the law, or the application of the law. And it is also my recollection that the Commission took the position in general that we shouldn't apply the statute too strictly because of the fact that war emergencies had to be met, that operations weren't normal, and were only temporary.

"Q. But did you, in your memory, does it impress itself upon you that the hauling of soldiers was one of the things, wasn't it, you were inclined to be tolerant of?

"A. Yes, that is true, and in some cases the Commission did make exemptions. I can't really remember

which cases it was for it has been quite a long time back.” (R. 43, 44).

In actual application, this theory of a liberal interpretation was given effect. The operations of the Airway Motor Coaches was construed as being exempt although the case was recognized as being a marginal one as is evidenced by the following quotation from Exhibit A:

“Between these two cases there are borderline cases, the status of which might well be subjected to review and possible reclassification — such cases as Airway Motor Lines. Signed Heber Bennion, Jr.” (R. 21).

That this operation was specifically considered is supported by the testimony of Commissioner Gibson which was given without any prompting or prior mention of Airway Motor Coaches. His testimony is as follows:

“Q. Would that include Salt Lake City and suburban towns and communities within close proximity to Salt Lake:

“A. They had what they called Airway Buses.

“Q. Airway Motor Lines?

“A. Airway Motor Lines running from Salt Lake City to Sandy, and in the area and was construed to be a street railway system, if my memory serve me correctly, and no tax on that.” (R. 32).

That the exemption was construed to comply to the Airway company is further corroborated by the fact that no tax was



in fact levied against or paid by Airway.

In comparison, the nature of the Airway operation is very similar to the Kearns operation. In 1940 Airway Motor Coaches received a certificate of convenience and necessity to transport passengers to and from Salt Lake City and the following outlying communities: Murray, Sandy, Crescent, Draper, Midvale, West Jordan, Riverton, Taylorsville, and Bennion, Utah. The authority contained in their certificate was analogous to the authority contained in the Kearns certificate in that it did not authorize the carrier to pick up and let off at all places within Salt Lake City. The proximity of the above mentioned towns as compared to that of Kearns to Salt Lake City is shown by the map at page 28 of this brief. It will be noted that 6 out of the 9 towns are actually farther from Salt Lake City than is Kearns.

As to the number of passengers and frequency of the runs, there can be no comparison between the two operations. Airway hauled members of established communities who occasionally traveled to Salt Lake City, while the Kearns run had to meet the demands of soldiers who went into Salt Lake City every opportunity they had. The Kearns operation likewise is an a fortiori case to the Airway operation insofar as operating authority is concerned since there is evidence that during the war emergency the Public Service Commission allowed and directed that service be granted by Lewis Bros. Stages which was not in strict compliance with its certificate of convenience and necessity. Mr. Hacking, Chairman of the Public Service Commission, made this statement:

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