1949

## Orson Lewis dba Lewis Bros. Stages v. State Tax Commission : Brief of Defendant

Utah Supreme Court

### PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

The fundamental facts in this case are not in dispute and plaintiff's Statement of Facts, as outlined in its brief, is substantially correct and the material parts thereof are adopted by the defendant for the purpose of this case.

### QUESTIONS INVOLVED

1. As pointed out by the plaintiff, the major issue in this case is a judicial construction of Title 80, Chapter

15, Section 4, Utah Code Annotated, 1943, which imposes a tax equivalent to two per cent of the amount paid “(1) to common carriers \* \* \* as defined by Section 76-2-1 Revised Statutes of Utah, 1933, \* \* \* for all transportation \* \* \* provided, that said tax shall not apply to \* \* \* street railway fares \* \* \*.”

2. Whether the Tax Commission did in fact construe the Kearns operation of Lewis Brothers Stages as being within the designated exemption.

3. If the court finds that such construction did in fact exist, whether such construction of the statute is correct.

We will discuss these three questions chronologically as outlined by plaintiff in its brief under plaintiff's Statement of Errors.

1. The exemption created by the Legislature was intended to cover situations such as the Kearns operation.

2. The exemption has been previously liberally construed by the Utah Supreme Court and the State Tax Commission.

3. The Kearns operation complies with the valid tests now being applied by the State Tax Commission as outlined in Exhibit A.

## REPLY TO PLAINTIFF'S ARGUMENT

## I.

**The exemption created by the Legislature was intended to cover situations such as the Kearns operation.**

In discussing this question raised by plaintiff, it is submitted that the only question to be determined is the proper definition of the term "street railway fares." Plaintiff cites portions of the Utah Supreme Court Case, *Utah Light and Traction Company v. State Tax Commission of Utah*, 92 Utah 404, 68 Pac. 2d 759, in support of plaintiff's position that the exemption of "street railway fares" was intended to cover situations such as the Kearns operation. Plaintiff has apparently read the law as set forth in the *Utah Light and Traction Company* case and makes the novel assertion that "the Kearns operation was only an integral part of an emergency street transportation system in and about Salt Lake City." (Plaintiff's Brief, P. 10) and further, "It must be recognized that it was only an extension of a street transportation service during a war emergency which the traction company lacked facilities to make." (Plaintiff's Brief, P. 11) Plaintiff cites no case, and indeed it is believed none can be found, to support such contention. There is no assertion, nor is there any evidence in the record, which would indicate that Plaintiff's Kearns operation had anything at all to do with the operation of the Salt Lake City Lines.

This court, in deciding the *Utah Light and Traction Company Case* said

“Scrutiny of the language of the statute leads to the same result. In Section 4 (b), the tax is imposed as follows: ‘A tax equivalent to two (2) per cent of the amount paid: (1) To common carriers, or telephone or telegraph corporations as defined by Section 76-2-1 of the Revised Statutes of Utah, 1933,’ to which is added the proviso that such tax is not to apply to ‘street railway fares.’ Turning to section 76-2-1, we find the definition of common carriers ‘includes every railroad corporation; street railroad corporation; \* \* \* engaged in the transportation of persons or property for public service over regular routes between points within this state.’ Subdivision 14. In the same section, the term ‘street railroad’ is defined as including ‘every railway, and each and every branch or extension thereof, by whatsoever power operated, being mainly upon, along, above or below any street, \* \* \* within any city or town,’ etc. Subdivision 7. It would seem to follow that when the phrase, ‘street railway fares,’ was used the legislative intent was that such language had reference to the fares paid on every street railway, ‘and each and every branch or extension thereof, by whatsoever power operated.’ *This language negatives the idea of an intention to classify or discriminate against the users of motorbuses or trolley coaches and to favor the riders of street cars particularly where, as in plaintiff’s case, the street car lines, bus lines and trolley routes are necessary parts of an integrated street railway system.*” (Italics supplied.)

and further:

“The trolley coach and motorbus substitutions in place of street cars on rails or as an extension



of the rail system are ordinarily considered as being within the scope of street railway service and systems or auxiliary thereto. *City of Columbia v. Tatum*, 174 S. C. 366, 177 S. E. 541; *Russell v. Kentucky Utilities Co.*, 231 Ky. 820, 22 S. W. (2d) 289, 66 A. L. R. 1238; *Anderson v. Knoxville Power & Light Co.*, 16 Tenn. App. 259, 64 S. W. (2d) 204."

It is not for counsel to suggest to this court what interpretation should be placed upon the quotations from the *Utah Light and Traction Company* case. However, it would appear from a reading of the entire case that the Tax Commission erroneously required the Traction Company to report trolley coach and motorbus fares while exempting fares paid by streetcar riders within the same integral street railway system. It is, therefore, submitted that in order for a transportation system to qualify under the exemption of "street railway fares" the motorbuses or trolley coaches operating within the system must be an extension or branch of a street railway system.

This court in two other cases has considered what constitutes a street railway. The first case decided was *Utah Rapid Transit Company v. Ogden City et al*, 58 Pac. 2d 1, 89 Utah 546 (1936). In this case the plaintiff sought a writ of prohibition prohibiting the defendant city from purchasing and operating motorbuses as a common carrier within the city of Ogden. Prior to that time the plaintiff had been operating a street railway



within the limits of Ogden City and then began using motorbuses in connection therewith. The sole question in the case was whether or not the city had authority to own and operate buses within the city for the purpose of transporting passengers. The statutes of Utah permitted the city to maintain and operate a street railway. The contention of the defendant was that the purpose of such grant of power to municipalities to operate street railways was to enable them to furnish transportation over the streets and the means employed to that end were largely in their discretion. The court clearly held that the authority to operate a street railway does not imply authority to operate motorbuses. The court said:

“ \* \* \* but to say that the former means of transportation (street railway) fairly includes the latter (operation of motorbuses) is to extend the import of the word “railway” far beyond its meaning.”

The court quoted from the case of *Simoneau v. Pacific Electric Railroad Co.*, 159 Cal. 494, 115 Pac. 320, 323, wherein that court quoted from the case of *Hannah v. Metrop. St. R. Co.*, 81 Mo. App. 78, 79 as follows:

“ ‘A street railway’ has been variously defined. As the name indicates, the primary meaning of ‘street railway’, or ‘street railroad’ is one constructed and operated on and along the streets of a city or town for the carriage of persons from one point to another in such city or town or to and from its suburbs.”

The Utah Supreme Court went on to say: " " "

"A street railway is such regardless of the motive power used. \* \* \* While no particular motive power, and no particular location along the street is an essential characteristic of a street railway, yet a way or road without rails is not a railway or railroad. \* \* \* No case has been called to our attention and we have been unable to find a case in which a motorbus line not run on rails has been held to be a street railway."

In fact, the Utah Court said the contrary was held to be the case in *Woodward v. City of Seattle*, 140 Wash. 83, 248 P. 73, 75. In that case Seattle owned a street railway system. It acquired a bus, and while operating the same in connection with their street railway a passenger was injured by negligence of the bus driver. An action was brought against the city and the court held that notwithstanding the city had the authority to operate a street railway it was without authority to operate motorbuses. In its decision the court said:

"The power granted by statute is restricted to railways; and to say that the term 'railways' may be construed to include motorbuses and motorbus routes is to say that the term also includes all manner of transportation, including that by water and air. It is common knowledge that for many years street railway systems have been operated without the operation of motorbuses in connection, and this is conclusive that such operation is not indispensable."

From the statement of the Supreme Court of the State of Utah in the above case and from the decisions which it favorably quotes, there is little doubt that the law in Utah must be considered to be that the term "street railway" cannot include, at least ordinarily, motorbus transportation or any other form of transportation not run on rails, or at least a basic street railway system which includes an extension or branches on which trolley coaches or motorbus substitutions in the place of streetcars on rails are being utilized.

The second Utah case was *Utah Light & Traction Company v. Public Service Commission*, 101 Ut. 99, 118 Pac. 2d 683. The salient facts pertinent to our problem are that the plaintiff brought an action for the revocation of the order of the defendant issuing a certificate of convenience and necessity to the Airway Motor Coach Lines as a common carrier between Salt Lake City and nine smaller communities in the South end of Salt Lake County.

One of the contentions made by the plaintiff was that the Commission's order was contrary to law for the reason that the statutes required the application for a certificate of convenience and necessity to show that the applicant had received the required consent, franchise or permit of the proper county, city, municipal or other public authority before he could secure a certificate of convenience and necessity. The plaintiff asserted that Airway Motor Coach Lines had no such franchise. For

that reason the issuance of the certificate was contrary to law. The Supreme Court dealt with this contention by saying that a city or municipal corporation had not authority under the statutes of the state of Utah to grant or require an automobile corporation to have a local franchise to engage in business, though the statutes permit them to grant a franchise to a street railway company. The court states in very clear language:

“That an automobile corporation such as this (Airway Motor Coach Lines) is not a street railway was held in *Utah Rapid Transit Co. v. Ogden*, 89 Utah 546.”

For this and other reasons the order of the Public Service Commission was affirmed. Consequently, it seems clear that Lewis Brothers Stages cannot claim to be a street railway. In addition to this, in view of the *Utah Rapid Transit Company* case, it would seem almost without question that the term street railway may not be extended to include motorbus lines though such lines operate in essentially the same manner as a street railway.

In considering what the characteristics of a street railway consist of, the following brief quotations would seem helpful:

(1) “*The right to lay rails in a public street is the distinguishing feature of a street railway.*” (*Atlantic City and S. R. Co. v. State Board of Assessors*, 96 Atlantic 568, 571)

(2) "Street railways are only such as are authorized to occupy and *use the streets of a city or town under franchise from the municipality.*" (*Lewis v. Omaha and C. B. S. Ry. Co.*, Iowa, 138 N.W. 1092, 1094)

(3) "A street railway is intended merely for local convenience and to *facilitate travel from point to point within the municipality or suburban district and immediately adjacent thereto.*" (*Hartzell v. Alton, Grante and St. Louis Traction Co.*, 104 N.E. 1080, 1081, 263 Ill. 205)

(4) "The fundamental purpose of a street railway is to *accommodate street travel*, and not to travel to or from points beyond the city's lines." (*City of Aurora v. Elgin, A. & S. Traction Co.*, 81 N.E. 544, 547, 227 Ill. 485)

(5) "Street railways are \* \* \* to enable inhabitants of municipalities to pass from one portion of their territory to another and to stop at *frequent and convenient points* according to the regulations of the company." (*Sparks v. Phila. and C. R. Co.*, 61 A. 881, 882, 212 Pa. 105)

(6) "The tracks for a street railway are ordinarily laid to *conform to street grades. Its cars run at short intervals, stopping at street crossings to take on and let off passengers and not freight.*" (*Hannah v. Metrop. St. R. Co.*, 81 Mo. App. 78, 82, citing *Williams v. City Elec. Ry. Co.*, 41 F. 556)

(7) "Further distinction is made in the case of *Hartzell v. Alton, Granite and St. Louis Traction Co.* previously cited. Therein the courts

state that the law makes a clear distinction between a street railroad and a railroad. *A street railroad is a railroad laid down on streets of a town or city for purpose of carrying passengers from one point to another in the city or to and from its suburbs, but a railroad runs across country carrying both passengers and freight and takes on the character of a commercial railroad. (Italics supplied.)* These cases are amply supported by many others holding similarly.

The court in the Utah Light and Traction Company case and plaintiff in its brief on page 12 indicate that in determining this matter we must look not to the letter of the statute, but rather to the intent of the Legislature. The most that can be said with regard to the intention of the Legislature is as Judge Wolfe pointed out in his concurring opinion in the traction company case that "the Legislature did use the term 'street railway' here to mean street transportation system." We submit that no broader interpretation should be given to street transportation system than is given in the traction company case and that, if a street transportation system is to be exempt from the collection of sales tax on their fares, there must be at least partial compliance with the definition of common carrier as set forth in Title 76-2-1, Revised Statutes of Utah, 1933.

To now question what the Legislature meant by street railway fares is purely speculative and we believe that the best indication of what the Legislature intended is what the Legislature said. Counsel has cited no case



and we have been unable to find one single case in which the words "street railway" are construed to mean a bus transportation system or any other type of transportation system except one which is operated on *rails*. To hold that the plaintiff in this case is not subject to this tax would be to entirely nullify the statute imposing the tax on common carriers. If Lewis Brothers Stages be exempt from the sales tax, considering their mode of operation, then we would submit that every transportation company operating in the state of Utah is also exempt.

Several portions of the record should be specifically consulted with regard to this question. The testimony of Mr. Hacking, Chairman of the Public Service Commission, with regard to the operations of Lewis Brothers Stages indicates conclusively that Lewis Brothers Stages had no authority to operate a transportation system which could possibly be construed as "street railway." (R. 32-42) This testimony indicates that the Lewis Brothers Stages could pick up passengers at any place on the out-bound trip but could not discharge on the out-bound trip, and likewise the Lewis Brothers Stages could pick up passengers on the in-bound trip but could not discharge passengers along the route until reaching Salt Lake City.

In response to question by counsel as to whether Lewis Brothers Stages had any certificate of convenience and necessity allowing them to pick up and discharge



passengers within the metropolitan area of Salt Lake City, Mr. Hacking answered: "They have no such certificate: never have had to my knowledge." (R. 41) To the same effect Mr. Orson Lewis testified on cross examination as follows:

Q. "Mr. Lewis, you testified you picked up and let off passengers between your terminal, Salt Lake and Kearns; where did you pick up the passengers?"

A. "Any place on our route.

Q. "And on your out-bound trip, where did you let them off?"

A. "33rd South.

Q. "That is the first let off?"

A. "Yes." (R. 62)

We submit that, in view of this and other testimony, Lewis Brothers Stages wholly fails to meet the fourth test used by the Commission which provides "(4) Frequency of stops to pick up *and* deposit passengers along streets of a city *and suburban areas.*" (Italics supplied.)

One other principle which we feel must be considered in construing this particplar section is that announced by this court in the case of *Norville v. State Tax Commission*, 98 Utah 170, 97 Pac. 2d 937, wherein the court held "But, likewise, statutes exempting taxpayers from

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